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~ Saturn, the melancholy god of time and
memory, holds the phoenix of revival. This
allegory serves as a device to Sebastian Colet,
the Venetian printer of Du Cange’s famous

Medieval Latin Glossary from 1736-1740.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA2888
D8 1736]







A Message from

‘Bishop Remi De Roo

CHARLES JOHN SEGHERS (1839-1886) was the second
Roman Catholic bishop of Victoria. He attended
the First Vatican Council in Rome (1869—70) but
began as a missionary in Vancouver in 1863. His work
extended to Vancouver Island, Victoria, Oregon City,
and Alaska, where he was murdered on a missionary
journey at Nulato, in 1886. Like myself, Seghers
had Belgian roots, worked extensively with First
Nations peoples, and attended a Vatican Council.

He always carried books with him when he
travelled, and as he journeyed throughout Europe he
acquired a remarkable collection of ancient books in
nine European languages. A friend asked him what he
did with all these books, and Seghers replied, in a letter
dated December 10, 1872, that “a bishop without books
is a soldier without arms.” Indeed, he was so devoted
to his books that one of his last requests before his final
journey to Alaska was to “take good care of the library.”

~ The Seghers Library in its glory. Taken
in 1896 by the father of Mr. G. H. Carrigan,
this is the only image we know of the
original Seghers Library as it was housed
in the Episcopal Palace on Yates Street in
Victoria. According to The Daily Colonist
on January 1, 1886, the “grand library” was
18 x 37 feet, with Seghers’ study a more
modest 16 x 27 feet, situated at the rear. At
the time of this photograph, Jean-Nicolas

Lemmens (1850-1897) was the diocese bishop.
Image C-05474, courtesy of Royal BC Museum, BC Archives and the

Diocese of Victoria Archives
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The Seghers Collection consists of approximately 4,000
volumes. It is essentially Seghers’ personal library comple-
mented by collateral works purchased by the diocese. It is
richin continental imprints from the sixteenth to nineteenth
centuries and reflects his broad interests: philosophy; ethics,
psychology, science, Roman history, drama, and music.

Devotional literature is a large component and
the collection contains most of the major works of
the Church Fathers, the complete Patrologiae in both
Greek and Latin, the Acta Sanctorum (66 volumes),
a large collection of bibles dating from 1699 to 1855,
and a smaller collection of prayer books, treatises,
sermons, commentaries, and histories of the Catholic
Church. It also contains sixteenth- and seventeenth-
century editions of the works of Aristotle, Valerius,
Maximus, Justinus, Tacitus, and other classical authors.

In 1962, shortly after my installation as bishop of
Victoria, I discovered these books stored in boxes at the
rectory nextto Saint Andrew’s Cathedral at 740 View Street.
[ was amazed at the age and the scope of these volumes.
[ was also impressed by the vision of my predecessor and
the foresight he manifested in bringing all this scholarly
material to sucha remote destination at that time in history.

After the establishment of the University of
Victoria, I asked myselt how our diocesan church might
contribute to its growth. Since this collection of books



was not being effectively used, it occurred to me that
they might serve a larger public and be better preserved
for the future if they were housed at the university.
Following from my role as a participant in all four
sessions of the Second Vatican Council in Rome (1962—
1965), I later added my own private collection of materials.
Included are my personal copies of all the documents < a typographicat treasure on the tcte
of Vatican II—which have been bound in leather by Sucn srpruron ttyons xihoens

. and J. Baptista De Ville, 1723).
Charles Brandt—along with some other related works. sy v tirsesspcarcoeeions s s s

Ibelieve thisaddition to the collectionisin fullaccord
with the spirit of the Council, as indicated in the Vatican
Constitution on the role of the Church in the world today.

As the Council expended considerable energy in revis-
iting our ancient roots, it also encouraged us all to delve
into our past to learn from history and how we might help

to improve our society and prepare to face our future. [1
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A Message from
‘Jonathan Bengtson

LIBRARIES ARE INSTITUTIONS THAT TELL US what we
know, what we don’t know, what we need, and what we
value. A vibrant library is at the heart of any respectable
university, and its staff, physical spaces, collections, and,
increasingly, its digital pathways are the lifeblood of
faculty and students alike. The profound and enduring
role of the library in preserving and providing access to
the creative and intellectual legacy of humanity is funda-
mental to academic excellence and student success.
The special collections and archives of libraries are
rich in the source materials that bring history and the
human experience to life. Although relatively young as
an institution, the University of Victoria Libraries has
a remarkably deep and broad range of special collec-
tions, thanks to the generosity and foresight of donors,
librarians, academics, and community supporters,
whose support continues to impact the current gener-
ation of scholars and lay the foundations for the future.

~> Latin Bible, 1740. See figure 72.

[University of Victoria Librarie:

s Special Collections: Seghers BS75 1740]
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In The Idea of a University, John Henry Newman
wrote that it is “education which gives a man a clear,
conscious view of his own opinions and judgments, a
truth in developing them, an eloquence in expressing
them, and a force in urging them. It teaches him to see
things as they are, to go right to the point, to disentangle
a skein of thought, to detect what is sophistical, and
to discard what is irrelevant.” The Seghers Collection,
formed during Newman’s own late nineteenth century—
though in the milieu of Western Canada—must have
helped serve this purpose for its original owner and
creator, Bishop Charles John Seghers. The subsequent
history of the collection, described in this publication,
is rather remarkable. Now, more than 125 years since
Seghers’ untimely death in Alaska, the books that
he collected have become a foundational collection
within one of the major research universities on the
west coast of North America. The interplay of this
Catholic legacy within a secular institution is a healthy
tension which, perhaps, ultimately means that the
collection will have a far broader impact than Bishop
Seghers ever envisioned. This publication and the work
of the author, Hélene Cazes, is a major step along the
path towards a greater understanding of the early and
varied legacy of the Catholic Church in Victoria. [ ]



A Brief History of the
Seghers Collection from
Christopher Petter

IT WAS 37 YEARS AGO WHEN boxes containing 4,000
volumes of the Seghers Collection arrived in Special
Collections at the University of Victoria. Howard
Gerwing, who was Special Collections librarian at
the time, and his assistant Dietrich Bertz, spent many
hours unpacking the boxes, dusting and vacuuming
the books before taking them upstairs on book trucks
to be catalogued and classified. June Thompson was the
head of Cataloguing, and at the time, there were nine or
ten professional cataloguers on stafl. George Hruby, a
cataloguer who could read and write Latin, was assigned
to catalogue the bulk of them. Cataloguing began in
June of 1978; it took the cataloguers until September
1979 to complete the original catalogue records. A notice
was placed in a McPherson Library memorandum in
April 1979 announcing the acquisition of the collection.
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The original agreement was signed by Dean Halliwell,
University Librarian, and Bishop Remi De Roo. The
collection was on “indefinite loan” and the agreement
could not be revoked by either party unilaterally. The
diocese agreed to add collateral or related volumes over
time. The library agreed to keep the volumes together
in Special Collections, where they would be kept secure
under environmental controls and made accessible to
both scholars and the diocese. A special bookplate was
added to each volume recognizing the gift of the collection
for “the convenience of the community of scholars.”

From the late 1970s until the early 1990s the collection
received verylittle attention but was preserved in compact
storage by Special Collections. In October 1994, Nicholas
Barker, the distinguished editor of The Book Collectorand
former head of conservation at the British Library, visited
the library on a Lansdowne Fellowship, and I asked him
for an assessment of the Seghers Collection. He wrote:

It is of no great commercial value. It is, however,
incomparably valuable as a document of church
history as a whole, in particular of theology,
Christian philosophy, liturgy and, in the 19th
century, of the administration of the Catholic
church, in particular its missionary endeavours
in Western Canada and British Columbia....

~ The Holy Bible: The Approved Holy
Catholic Bible Containing the Entire

Canonical Scriptures, According to the Decree

of the Council of Trent. See figure 70.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS180

1888 P45]
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Basically, it offers three main research sources:

first, as a document of Church history; secondly,

as a document of the history of Canada, and in
particular of British Columbia; and thirdly as a
document of the history of the book, in particular of
the history of printing and book binding, the book
trade and the dissemination of learning through

the study of provenance. In view of this, the Centre
for the Studies in Religion and Society [hereafter
csrs| and the McPherson Library should jointly
form a program for instituting a series of research
projects in all three areas.... The Diocese... should be
encouraged to send priests to participate not only as
students ... but also part of the teaching program.

After Barker’s assessment, an unsuccessful attempt
was made by the csrs to persuade the diocese to
transfer ownership of the collection jointly to csrs
and Special Collections. However, in December 1994,
a new agreement was negotiated between University
Librarian Marnie Swanson and Bishop De Roo,
outlining responsibilities for all parties. The csrs and
the Catholic Diocese assumed responsibility to raise
funds to augment the collection. The csrs also agreed
to raise funds to cover the costs of the restoration, repair,
rebinding, or refurbishing of the Seghers Collection.
The library agreed to house the collection with other



rare materials and to automate the catalogue records,
a priority Barker had recommended in his report.

Following up on the centre’s offer to provide
funds for conservation, in December 1995, the diocese
commissioned conservator Charles Brandt to pay a
visit to the collection and write a condition report.
Brandt’s report addressed the need to keep the relative
humidity constant at 50 percent, to treat the bindings
with leather dressing, to store the folios flat and not on
end, and to restore the books most used by scholars.
Following this report, the library did undertake a limited
program of leather treatment, but the library’s bindery
staft were redeployed before it could be completed.

Upon his retirement in 1999, Bishop De Roo,
who is an avid book collector in his own right, gener-
ously donated about 200 more books to the collection,
including his beautifully leather bound set of the Vatican
II council minutes, thus fulfilling the dioceses’ original
offer to augment the collection. In 1999, the csrs also
helped by encouraging a research fellow, John Sandys-
Wiinsch, to create “a guide to the collection for those who
might want to use it.” Dr. Sandys-Wiinsch’s work spurred
the catalogue department to reconvert the old records to
our online catalogue, which can now be easily accessed
together under the search term “Seghers Collection.”

In 2005, Dr. Hélene Cazes, a specialist of Renaissance
literature and an associate professor at UVic, became

XV
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interested in the collection and began her research and
teaching with it. Although I do not think she ever read
the Barker report, her research fulfilled the three goals
set out by Barker in his assessment. Hélene’s enthusiasm
has been infectious and with her use, interest in the
collection has grown substantially. Special Collections
feels doubly blessed to have a teaching classroom in
which the books can be used by students and a storage
vault where they can be better conserved. With the
higher profile and use of the collection brought about by
Hélene’s teaching and research, including this wonderful
publication, it is hoped that all parties involved will
be able to augment the collection and to raise funds
to carry out the conservation and restoration work
that both Barker and Brandt recommended. Without
doubt, this seminal collection deserves to continue to be

~> Missale Romanum ex decreto Sacrosancti

Concilii Tridentini restitutum / S. Pii V
Pontificis Maximi jussu editum aliorum
Pontificum cura recognitum, a Pio X

reformatum et Ssmi D. N. Benedicti XV

auctoritate vulgatum, 1921. See figure 68.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections:
Seghers BX 2015 A 21921]

discovered, used, studied, and celebrated as it is today. [
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The Seghers Collection

Old Books for a New World

HE SEGHERS BOOKS

hispering in the archival vaults of the

University of Victoria Libraries, the 1,431

titles comprising the Seghers Collection
attest to the Roman Catholic presence on Vancouver
Island, documenting the Catholic doctrine and identity
brought to the missions and communities of the Pacific
Northwest. With 340 titles published before 1800, as well
as several exceptional nineteenth-century scholarly series,
this very special collection represents the Catholic project
of a universal library,’ where foundations, commentaries,
guides, and continuations were to be kept together and
forever for the guidance and memory of present and future
communities. Placed on permanent loan with University
of Victoria Libraries in 1976, this unique collection is the
legacy of the Catholic Diocese of Victoria and bears the
name of its founder, the second bishop of Victoria, Charles
Seghers [F16. 1].

THE FOUNDING FATHER

Charles John Seghers was born in 1839 at Ghent, Belgium,
and was ordained in Mechelen in 1863. A young man
infused with the missionary zeal and romantic aspirations

Figure 2

of his time, he wanted to spread “the good word” among
the First Nations people, evoked as “his Indians,” whom
he perceived as innocent and pure, still in a stage ideally
defined as “primitive” and not “civilized.” As a seminar-
ian, he attended the American College in Louvain, Bel-
gium, founded in 1857 for the training of missionaries and
supported by Modeste Demers, the first bishop of Victoria.
Seghers arrived in North America in 1863 and, as soon as
he could, embarked for the Diocese of Vancouver Island,
which was part of the Diocese of Portland at that time [r1c.
2]. A talented preacher, musician, and linguist, he was the
assistant of Bishop Modeste Demers, as well as the spiritual

1 Charles John Seghers at his ordination. 2
This photograph is also reproduced on the
frontispiece of his biography by Maurice de
Baets, Mgr Seghers, 'apotre de ’Alaska (1896).

Image A-01764, courtesy of Royal BC Museum, BC Archives.

The bishopric and the Catholic Church
on Humboldt Street in Victoria, 1875. A new

cathedral was built on View Street in 1884.
Image A-02582, courtesy of Royal BC Museum, BC Archives.



Figure 3

3 The Colonist, Victoria, November 17,
1888. In prominent place (top, middle),
the Victoria Daily tells the story of
Seghers’ murder and the travels of his
body until it was buried in Victoria.

4 View Street, Victoria. On the side of St.
Andrew’s Cathedral, three stones remind the

passer-by of the first three bishops of Victoria:

2

Modeste Demers, Charles Seghers, and John
Jonckau (who died before he was consecrated).

5  Prayer for Charles Seghers, 1886. The
news of the murder of Charles Seghers deeply
moved the Victoria community. As soon as
the death was known, it was presented by
many as a martyrdom. The later biography by
Maurice de Baets emphasized this dimension,

which was also developed in narratives by
Sister Mary Calasancz and Sister Mary
Theodore (see Heralds of Christ, the King:
Missionary Record of the North Pacific
1837-1878, New York: P. ]. Kennedy, 1939).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX4670
M37 JImage NWp 282.711 S454P, courtesy of Royal BC Museum, BC

Archives.



director of the Sisters of St. Ann, who
had arrived in 1858 in Victoria. Follow-
ing Demers’ death in 1873, Seghers was

appointed second bishop of Victoria.
An inspiring missionary for the
northern regions of Yukon and Alas-
ka, Seghers was a staunch advocate for
Catholic education. He was also the
founder of the first hospital in Victoria
and of numerous other missions. Upon
his appointment as coadjutor to the
archiepiscopal see of Portland in 1879
Figure 4 (where he was to be an assistant to the
archbishop), he was greeted by the archbishop of Portland,
Norbert Blanchet, who pronounced the occasion “the hap-
piest day of my life.” Seghers was appointed as archbishop
of Oregon City in 1880. Missing Victoria and the northern
missions, he obtained a papal derogation that allowed him
to recover his bishopric in Victoria in 1883, thus making him

a bishop and archbishop, as well as a missionary.

On November 28, 1886, on a northern expedition that
paved the way for the establishment of the mission at Kos-
erevski/Holy Cross in Alaska, he was murdered by his
travelling companion, Frank Fuller [r1c. 3].¥ A headstone
commemorates Seghers’ name in front of St. Andrew’s Cathe-
dral on View Street in Victoria [r1G. 4], where he lies in the
cathedral crypt along with Bishop Demers and Archbishop
Jonckau.

Priest, bishop, archbishop, missionary, Charles Seghers left
an enduring legacy of hospitals, schools, and missions, but also
one of books and founding legends, which gave an identity to
the young Diocese of Victoria. Known for saying that “books
are the weapons of a bishop,”” Seghers gathered a precious
library of ancient books, as well as an extensive collection of
theological publications, which he later bequeathed to the
Catholic Diocese [r16. 5]. Books were indeed his most cherished
possession. He was known for bringing books everywhere he
went, for reading while riding his horse or travelling by canoe
or sleigh" [r1c. 6], and for once having left a trunk of ancient
volumes in a cache at Saint Michael Bay in Alaska in 1877. A
photograph kept in the Catholic Diocese archives in Victoria
shows him receiving guests in his luxuriant library, with its

Figure 5

Figure 6

6  Missale romanum: ex decreto Lyons: Pelagaud, 1846. This missal is
sacrosancti concilii Tridentini restitutum bound to resist all climates, and its

/ S. Pii Quinti jussu editum; Clementis sturdy waxed fabric protects the book

VIIL et Urbani VIII. Papae auctoritate from water and the hazards of travel.
recognitum; et novis missis ex indulto [University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX 2015

. . A21846]
apostolico hucusque concessis auctum.



beautiful built-in wooden shelves. His
last recommendation when leaving for
his fateful trip in 1886 was to “take good
care of the library™! [r16. 7]. (See page iv.)

THE NEVER-
ENDING LIBRARY

Taking care of the library, howev-
er—first kept in the bishopric on
View Street, then at Yates Street until 1925—went beyond
the simple conservation of books: it kept the spirit of book
collecting alive. By not only preserving the first collection
but by adding to it, the bishops, priests, and parishioners of
the Catholic Church collectively developed the core library
into one of the best collections of theological books on the

Figure 7

West Coast of North America. Between the death of Charles
Seghers in 1886 and the completion of the first inventory in
1925, the Diocese Library grew by at least 225 books. How-
ever, this may be a deceptive number, since some ancient
books may also have been donated to the library during that
time span, and we cannot be sure which of the books pub-
lished before 1886 belonged to Seghers.

Donors of books were originally members of the clergy.
John Jonckau (1840-1888) was ordained in the American
College in Louvain in 1867 and was to become vicar general
of the Diocese of Vancouver Island. When he was asked to
become a bishop, in 1886, he declined at first, but accepted
the function of bishop in 1888, dying before his consecration.
He bequeathed his books to the Diocese Library, as attested
by the poetic inscription on his German dictionary [Fics. 8 &
9]. Bishop Bertram Orth (1848-1931), ordained in 1872, was
the bishop, then archbishop of Vancouver Island, from 1900

Figures 8 & 9

7 Maurice de Baets, an apostolary notary in

8 John Jonckau inscribes his name on a 9

“Pour apprendre avec fruit la langue

Rome and the nephew of Charles Seghers, wrote
the first biography on Seghers: Mgr Seghers,
Papotre de ’Alaska, Paris-Ghent: Siffer, 1896.

(See Microforms, CIHM no. 00899.)

German-French dictionary (A. Molé, Neues
Worterbuch, Braunschweig: G. Westermann,
1852) bought at the Antwerp market:

“Anvers, Marché St Jacques, N°1612/38.”

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PC 2645
G2 N 48 1852]

teutonique, Consultons sans effroi ce
précieux lexique.” (So that we learn the
Teutonic language, Let’s confidently browse
through this precious lexicon.) These two
rhyming alexandrine lines give courage

to the student learning German.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PC 2645
G2 N 48 1852]



to 1904. He left his books to the Diocese Library, many of
them bearing his penciled name as a signature to what is now
called the Seghers Collection [F1e. 10].

Joseph Leterme (1862-1932) also trained at the Ameri-
can College in Louvain [r1e. 11]. Professor and principal at
Saint-Louis College (Victoria), Leterme was well known for
his role in the construction of four churches in the Sooke
area at Otter Point, Metchosin, Langford, and Strawberry
Vale. He was also a passionate book collector. He bequeathed
a very special book to the Diocese Library, an interleaved
New Testament, published in 1704 [F16. 12], that had been

Figure 10

Figure 11

Figure 12

10 Bertram Orth owned this copy of German
Synonyms, in eight volumes, which was
previously owned by Jos. Ed. Hermann.

Karl E. Georges, Ausfiihrliches lateinisch-
deutsches Handworterbuch aus den quellen
zusammengetragen und mit besonderer
bezugnahme auf synonymik der besten

hiilfsmittel ausgearbeitet, Leipzig: Hahn, 1869.

[Special Collections: Seghers PA 2365 G4 G4 1869]

11 Joseph Leterme owned this edition of
Bible commentaries collected by Giovanni
Stefano Menochio (1575-1655), Commentarii
totius S. Scripturae, ex optimis quibusque
authoribus collecti, Paris: Veuve Boudot,
1719. He signed with an elaborate paraph
and, in the volutes, included another

mention: the American College in Louvain.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS 485
M4 1719]

12 This edition of the New Testament,
Novum Jesu Christi Testamentum
vulgate editionis, Brussels: E. H. Fricx,
1704, was rebound especially for Joseph
Leterme on the occasion of his ordination

(at the American College) in Louvain.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS 1975 1704]



Figure 13

specially bound for him [r1c. 13] and
offered to him for his ordination at the
American College in Louvain in 1884.
For the rest of his life, as the changes in
the script show, he noted commentar-
ies, ideas for sermons, and meditations
on the interleaved white pages [F16. 14].

The collection also contains books
donated by Jean-Nicolas Lemmens

(1850-1897), ordained at the American College in Louvain in
1875 and bishop of Vancouver Island from 1888 to 1897 [F1e.
15], as well as Seghers’ first companion on his Alaska travels,
Joseph Marie Mandart (1819-1893).

One of the most striking contributions made by a priest
to the collection may be the register of marriage compiled
in 1856 by Fr. Louis Aloysius Lootens (1827-1898), which was
accidentally left, lost or forgotten, in the pages of the 1724
Dictionnaire des cas de conscience. Here the history of the

Figure 15

Figure 14

13 On the spine, the name of Joseph

Leterme is embossed with gold. This

little volume is a treasure made for

a promising young missionary.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS 1975 1704]

14 Joseph Leterme took advantage of the
interleaves and annotated lengthily the
New Testament with biblical references,

6

15 Dictionarium latino-gallicum. Fr.
Noél, Dictionaire latin-frangais, composé
sur le plan de ouvrage intitulé: Magnum
totius latinitatis lexicon, de Forcellini,
Bruxelles: Société nationale pour la F5 N6 1862]
propagation des bons livres, 1862.

commentaries, or ideas for sermons. This is one of the seven copies of the Latin-
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS 1975 1704] French dictionary by the Father Noél

published in Belgium throughout the
nineteenth century and widely used in high
schools and universities. This copy belonged
to Jean-Nicolas Lemmens (1850-1897).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA 2365



collection merges with the history of British Columbia, as
the document records the missionary’s visit to Fort Langley
in 1856, providing glimpses into the intermarriage of Hud-
son’s Bay Company men to Sté:lo women. The document is
in French—the language of Lootens, but also of most of the
Hudson’s Bay Company men mentioned in the document:
Brousseau, Latreille, Magui, Renaud, and Rousseau. Some
of them had been waiting for years for the visit of a Catholic
priest and, along with the regularization of their marriages,
they had their children baptized [1es. 16 - 18]. Parishioners,
too, sometimes left inscriptions in the books: a young Edgar
Watts, for example, survives in an indignant inscription on

Figure 16

Figure 17

Figure 18

16 This seven-volume Dictionnaire des cas de
conscience, compiled by Jean du Pontas and
published in Paris (Le Mercier) in 1724, lists
and solves the difficult questions a priest and
confessor can encounter during his pastoral
duties. It is a collection of approved decisions
attested to by scripture, the councils, the
popes, the works of the Fathers of the Church,
and recognized Catholic theologians. A
handsome book, it served as a repository for
a precious document. The Seghers Collection,
with this unexpected document discovered

between the pages of an ancient book, becomes

an archive and record of B.C. history.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BX1757
A2P82 1724]

17 Found in the pages of the dictionary’s
second volume was an original register of
marriages and baptisms recorded by Father
Lootens during a visit to Fort Langley in 1856.
A copy, which had been made for the City of
Victoria and for the cathedral, is now kept

in the BC Archives. The whole document is
written in French, which was the language

of the priest and of the parishioners, as

well as the majority of the Catholics in

Victoria until the twentieth century.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BX 1757
A2P821724v.2]

18 Eight men working for the Hudson’s

Bay Company sign their names, as parties
and witnesses. Most of them, like Latreille,
Renaud, and Magui, who sign on this second
page of the document, bear French names. On
the day of this pastoral visit, the voyageurs
were waiting to be officially married to Sto:lo
women with whom they already had children

and had been living with for many years.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BX1757
A2 P821724]



Figure 19 Figure 20

Figure 21

Figure 21A

the flyleaf of his Greek dictionary, recorded for all posterity
[F1GS. 19 & 20].

The most famous donor is undoubtedly Remi De Roo,
bishop of Victoria from 1962 to 1999. De Roo was a book col-
lector in his own right as well as a theologian, who attended
all four sessions of the Vatican II Council." He also added
a substantial collection of modern theological works to the
ancient library. Finally, he played a critical role in transfer-
ring the Seghers Collection to the care of the University of
Victoria Libraries in 1976, as a permanent loan which was
renewed in 1995 [F1G. 21].

Donations continue to be made to the collection, as the
seven titles published between 1976 (the official date when
entrusted to University of Victoria Libraries) and 1999 attest.
Indeed, the process is never-ending; the library infinitely
goes on.

THE “SEGHERS COLLECTION”

As a result of its collective provenance, as was previous-
ly shown by the history of the collection, the designation
“Seghers Collection” may be deceptive, since the collection
kept growing after the death of Charles Seghers and com-
prises donations from many other priests and parishioners.
It was John C. Cody, bishop of Victoria from 1937 to 1947,
who first officially named it after Seghers. Charles Seghers
himself most probably never referred to his library, nor the
Diocese Library, as the Seghers Collection, and only a small
number of books are signed by him. Taking into consider-
ation all the subsequent additions to the library, along with
the travels of the collection while it was placed in the care of
successive institutions, as well as documentary evidence left
by previous owners, one has to search very carefully to dis-
tinguish Seghers’ discrete signature, written in light pencil,
in some of his own books [F1G. 214].

19 Certainly, a dictionary for the Greek used
in the New Testament has its place within

the Seghers Collection. This one by John
Groves (A Greek and English Dictionary,
Comprising All the Words in the Writings
of the Most Popular Greek Authors; with

the Difficult Inflections in them and

in the Septuagint and New Testament,
Philadelphia: ].B. Lippincott, 1864) was surely
a second-hand acquisition or, possibly, a
donation by the owner. The endpaper attests
that the volume had belonged to “Master

Edgar Watts at Santa Clara College.”

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA445 E5
G8 1864]

20 Here is an unexpected inscription: “Edgar
not Jack as a certain young man calls me”! Are
Edgar and the “certain young man” arguing
and doodling on the dictionary fly-leaf?

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA445
E5G8 1864]

21 March 30, 1995. Bishop Remi De Roo
signs an agreement with UVic President
David Strong for the permanent loan of
the Seghers Collection to the University

of Victoria Libraries. Harold Coward,
the founder of the Centre for Studies in
Religion and Society, is standing behind
Bishop De Roo and President Strong.

Photograph communicated by Remi De Roo.

214 On the title page of a beautiful 1686
edition of Thomas Aquinas’ Summa
Theologica (Lyons: Anisson, Posuel, and
Rigaud), very discreetly in pencil in the upper

right corner, Seghers signed his name.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX 1749
T48 1685 1.2]



Charles Seghers did not describe his
collection nor did he document it in his
letters or diaries. The first extant inven-
tory of the library is found in the Catho-
lic Diocese Archives and may have been
drawn up for the purposes of moving
the books into storage. Anselm Montal-
di compiled this very first catalogue of
the collection in 1925 using an account
workbook [r16. 22]. He listed 3,556 Latin
volumes, giving each book a short title
and recording the date and place of pub-
lication, and whether a volume was a
duplicate or missing. In this document,
the library was called Libraria Episco-
palis Victoriae: the Diocese Library of
Victoria. The preliminary pages of many
of the Seghers books attest to this first
phase of the collection. Some of these
books collected as the “first generation”
of the Diocese Library bear a manu-  Figure 22
script inscription [F16. 23], but most are
stamped with the words “St. Andrew’s Cathedral” [r16. 24].

Everything changed in 1946, in preparation for the centen-
nial commemoration of the diocese and the occasion of many
celebrations about Charles Seghers and his legacy. The hom-
ages to Seghers included a play, written and performed by the
Sisters of St. Ann and pupils of St. Ann’s School. At this date,
the Seghers library first received its official printed ex-libris;
yet, ironically, the collection was to be shipped from Victoria
less than a year later, in 1946. Answering a plea for books from
Jean-Léon Allie, the Oblate Father in charge of the library at
Saint Paul Seminary in Ottawa,™ Bishop J. C. Cody sent the
whole Diocese Library to Ottawa on loan. Prior to shipping,
ex-libris were printed with the name “Domus Episcopalis Vic-
toriensis (Episcopal Palace of Victoria)” and attached to all the
books [F1c. 25]. A second ex-libris would be printed and added

Figure 25

Figure 23

Figure 24

22 In 1925, Anselmo Montaldi compiles
the first inventory of the Diocesan Library.
Divided into seventeen sections, the list
seems to follow the physical repartition

of books on bookshelves. The list was
written in Latin on ruled paper and is
kept in the Catholic Diocese Archives.

23 This Latin translation (by Jacques de
Billy 1535-1581) of the complete works of
Gregory of Naziansus (329-389 C.E.) was
published in Antwerp in 1570 by the heirs of

Johannes Stelsius. It bears the manuscript
mention of St. Andrew’s Cathedral in
the top right corner of its title page.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR65 G86
1570)

24 Under the title Disputationum Roberti
Bellarmini Politiani e Societate Iesu S.R.E.
Cardinalis de controversiis Christianae fidei
adversus huius temporis haereticos, quatuor
tomis comprehensarum, a large in folio
written by Robert Bellarmine (1542-1621)
explicitly details all the ways for discerning

heresy from orthodoxy. This copy was printed
in Cologne in 1628. The St. Andrew’s Cathedral
stamp is visible at the bottom of the page.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15 BX1750
B4 1628]

25 Here, in a 1698 Venetian edition of
Johannes de Luca’s Theatrum Veritatis
(Theatre of Truth), an ex libris composed
and printed by John C. Cody keeps track of
the Seghers books as they are shipped from

Victoria to the Saint Paul Seminary in Ottawa.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX 935 L77]



Figure 26

to the previous ones when Remi De Roo placed the collection
under the care of the University of Victoria in 1976, bearing the
name of “Seghers Library” [r1c. 26]. The library was baptized.
Between 1947 and 1967, the books were part of an impor-
tant seminary library in Ottawa. They were catalogued there
and received call numbers, which were indicated on the
spine by a small label and, on the endpaper or first page, dis-
cretely in pencil [F16. 27]. Some of the books, especially those
in series, received a label, placed on the spine, indicating
the author and the title of the book [r1G. 28]. The most visi-
ble sign of the transfer to Ottawa, though, is an additional
library stamp on all the books comprising the Seghers Col-
lection before 1947, which asserts that the books belong to the
“Library of Saint Paul Seminary.” This is sometimes repeated
by a second stamp bearing the words “Facultates Ecclesias-
ticee, UO, Bibliothéque Library, 233 Main, Ottawa” [F1c. 29].

Figure 27

Figure 29

Figure 28

26 In this 1864 re-edition of Cesare Baronio’s
Annales Ecclesiastici (Bar-le-Duc: Guerin,
1864-1883), the bookplate composed and
printed by Remi De Roo on the occasion of
the permanent loan of the collection to the
University of Victoria is added to Cody’s first
ex libris. As in the collection itself, indications
and marks are added to each other, never
taken off. The beautiful endpaper comes
from the workshop, in Ghent, of the binder

G. Cordonnier Canon. A sticker bearing

the name of this binder is to be found in the
volume M2149.6 /p 76 G 35: G. Cordonnier
Canon / Relieur/Rue aux Barres 15/A.

10

Gand. Many of Seghers’ personal books are
bound in the same style by this binder.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR145
B3v.9]

27 Close to the ancient bookplate of a
previous owner, this first tome of the Medieval
Latin Dictionary, composed by Du Cange

and published in Frankfurt (1681), shows

the call number assigned by librarians at

the Saint Paul Seminary in Ottawa. The ex
libris places the book in the collection of the
Italian Count Stefano Sanvitale (1764-1838).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 12” PA2888
D8 1681]

28 This first part of the Theologia Moralis,
published in Bologna (Andrea Polletti)

in 1754, is designated with the name of

the author (Nicolai Mazzotta) and a

short title on the spine, in order to make

it easy to identify on the bookshelves.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1757
M35]

29 On the first page, two stamps assert that
the book was part of the Saint Paul Library,

part of the “Facultates Ecclesiasticae.”
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1757
M33 1723]



Figure 30

Another property mark was stamped in ink on the tail of the
text block, clearly identifying its source library [F16. 30].

All these marks of ownership—inscribed between 1946
and 1976—come in addition to the marks left by prior Euro-
pean owners before Seghers’ time. For instance, in the
case of the volume of Theologia Moralis, compiled by Bart-
holomao Mastrio de Meldula (1602-1673) and published in
Venice in 1723, the binding shows that the book was part of
an earlier collection, probably a library, as one can still see
an old call number [r16. 31]. Another owner, Fr. Bernardino
de Santiago, has signed the endpaper of the binding [F1c. 32].
Signatures, bookplates, ex-libris, and annotations succeed
each other, forming numerous layers of ownership, some-
times conflicting with each other [r16. 33]. Owners frequent-
ly compete for the designated spot of honour at the upper
right-hand corner of the first page [F16. 34], the rivalry some-
times reaching the stage of physical erasure [F1c. 35] when

Figure 31

Figure 34

Figure 35

Figure 32

Figure 33

30 On the tail of the Commentaries on
Sentences, collected by Domingo de Soto (1494~
1560), another set of stamps ensures that the

books cannot be taken outside of the library.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1749 P4
$61575t. 1and 2.]

M331723]

32 On the endpaper, a former owner signed

his name: Fr. Bernardino de Santiago.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1757

33 The two volumes of this Commentary

in the Holy Scriptures, written by Jacobus

31 A former owner had bound this Theologia
Moralis, compiled by Bartholomao Mastrio de
Meldula (1602-1673) and published in Venice
in 1723. The short title is part of the binding.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1757
M331723]

Tirinus (Commentarius in Sacram
Scripturam, Lyons: Nicholaus and J. Baptista
De Ville, 1723), first belonged to M. Van den
Piitte. S. B. Knaeps added his name twice, on
top of the previous owner’s signature, as well

as on the inside cover and on the first page.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BS 485
T6 1723]

34 On the second page, though, the name

of the previous owner was erased.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BS 485
T6 1723]

35 The previous owner of this other
edition of Tirinus’ Commentary is
unknown, remaining hidden under the
library bookplate of the Redemptorists.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BS 485
T6 1736 t.1]
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Figure 36

Figure 37

the name of the first owner is covered over by a later one.
For the most part, however, libraries are the former owners:
the library of the abbey Saint-Vincent-du-Mans, for exam-
ple, is one of many congregational institutions which used
to own some of the Seghers books. It was dismantled, proba-
bly during the French Revolution and the period of the Ter-
ror when many libraries in such institutions were pillaged
or destroyed (1793-1795) [F1c. 36]. Some libraries, however,
remain anonymous, since the stamp proving their owner-
ship has been removed by one of the new possessors [F1c. 37].
The books returned to Victoria in several trips between
1964 and 1967. At this time, without a designated library
space, they were most probably left in boxes; some peo-
ple remember seeing them in the basement of St. Andrew’s
Cathedral. In 1973, the Sisters of St. Ann established a new
library, called the Seghers Memorial Library,* in their retreat
centre of Queenswood, founded in 1960. Of a larger scope,
the new Seghers Memorial Library welcomed many of the
Seghers Collection duplicates, as well as textbooks used in the
mission schools. ¥ The name of Seghers had thus become the
symbol for other patrimonial libraries within the context of
Victoria’s Catholic community.
For such a precious library, the
original Seghers books travelled quite
extensively: first by ship to Victoria
from their origins in Europe, then, as
a collection, by train to Ottawa in 1947
and back again to Victoria in 1964-
1967, before finally coming to rest at
the University of Victoria in 1976 [F1a.
38]. Each displacement caused alter-
ations to the library through human
Figure 38 mistakes made in either the selection,

packing and unpacking, or transport
of the books. These moves often exposed the collection to
many hazards, more often for the worse, but sometimes for
the better. Indeed, between the first extant catalogue in 1925
and the last one created in 1976 (supervised by the University

36 This edition of the complete works

of Hilarius, Bishop of Poitiers (Sancti
Hilarii Pictavorum episcopi Opera, Paris:
Muguet, 1693) bears the mention of a former
ownership: “ex libris monasterii Sancti
Vincentii Cenomanensis, congregationis
Sancti Mauri, catalogo inscriptus” (Library
of the Monastery of Saint Vincent of Le
Mans [Benedictine Order], Congregation

of Saint Maur, entered in the catalogue).
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BR 65
H5A2 1693]

12

37 The front page of this student edition
of Latin tragedies by Martino Antonio
Delrio (Antwerp [Plantin’s widow and
Joannes Moretus], 1593) has been defaced
so that the book cannot be repossessed by
its ancient owner. The title page still bears
the beautiful printer’s device of Plantin:
the compass, with the motto Labore et

Constantia (through work and perseverance).
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA6068 D34]

38 On the pages of a discarded 1975 calendar,
the books of the Seghers Collection receive their
first call number at the University of Victoria.
The collection is on permanent loan and is
held separately, as a library of its own, in
Special Collections at the University of Victoria
Libraries. The new call number, established
according to the classification of the Library

of Congress, is preceded by the name Seghers.



of Victoria Library’s head of Cataloguing, June Thompson),
there are noticeable discrepancies. Some titles are missing,
such as an incunable comprised of a collection of sentences
excerpted from Augustine, but new ones appear, such as the
gift from the archbishop of Montreal for the opening of St.
Paul Library in 1946, a magnificent book published in 1537
[F1GS. 39 & 40].

Our understanding of what constitutes the Seghers
Collection is further complicated by the dispersion of the
collection. As mentioned earlier, Seghers had a strong pen-
chant for travelling with his books, sometimes leaving them

Figure 39

behind in his missions. David Kingma, librarian for the Jes-
uit Archives at Gonzaga University in Spokane, WA, kind-
ly mentioned that eight books bearing the name of Charles
Seghers (including Bibles and textbooks in English and Rus-
sian) were left in the Jesuit missions of Alaska and brought
back to the Jesuit Collections in 1954 when the missions
were closed.

Thus the label “Seghers Collection” is more a symbol
than an origin. It attests to the legacy of inspiration left
by this bibliophile bishop to his community, a gift which
survives to this day. It also refers to the Catholic notion of

Figure 40

39 The Theologia Moralis, written by Anaklet
Reiffenstuel (1641-1703) and published in 1780

in Bassani, does not bear the Seghers ex libris.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1757
R4 1758]

40 The bibliographical description

and call number are the work of the
librarians of Saint Paul Seminary. A
former owner is still remembered on
the inside cover: Philippus Fortuna.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1757

R4 1758]
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Figure 41

“continuity in the tradition.” In Latin,
traditio means transmission, or legacy.
The Roman Catholic Church, as of its
first centuries, defined its identity and
doctrine, without rupture or oblivion,
within a continuum of testimonies,
interpretations, and revelations about
the faith [r16. 41]. Many books attest
to this conception of scholarship as a
continuation of both the tradition and
transmission of Catholic legacies.

The most striking illustration of
the Catholic traditio may well be the
title page of the collection The Lives
of Saints, published in 1683 [F16. 42].
Through its collections of council
decisions, decrees of bishops, writ-
ings of the “Fathers of the Church,”
accepted commentaries on the scrip-
tures, and all the texts documenting
its own history and theological choic-
es, the Catholic Church derives unity
from the conservation and continu-
ation of this tradition under the form
of the universal, never-ending library
of its memory. The magnificence of
the books themselves—often in large
format, often printed in two colours,
adorned with full-page engravings as
well as sophisticated initial letters—
expresses the glory and splendour of
the Church [r1Gs. 41 - 44].

41 In this 1631 edition of Vasquez’
Commentaries of Thomas of
Aquinas’ Summa (Lyon: Cardon), on
the printer’s device, Erudition and
Truth guide the scholarly work.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1749
T6V33 1631 t.1]

14

42 Initiated by Joannes Bollandus (1596-1665),
the scholarly compilation entitled Acta
sanctorum: quotquot toto orbe coluntur

vel a catholicis scriptoribus celebrantur

que ex latinis & greecis collects “all the

acts of all saints in the whole world, which
have been celebrated by Catholic authors

in Latin or Greek texts.” Erudition and
Truth present the title; angels help History
by bringing books. Underneath, Saturn,

symbolizing the power of time, is vanquished.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX4655
A2 1643)
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The Seghers appellation, almost generic now, is part of the bequests of later donors find true meaning in Seghers’
this transcendent unity of Catholicism. Containing both old name, not only in homage to him as the library’s founding
and new books, as well as those from many other libraries, father but as a symbol for the many libraries it represents, all
the Seghers Collection has evolved into a living, encom-  catholic and all joined into one.

passing unity: the Diocese Library. From this perspective,

Figure 43

Figure 44

43 The royal (French) collection of councils,
Conciliorum omnium generalium, et
provincialium collectio regia, counts no less
than 37 volumes and is part of a group of
twelve collections of councils printed before
1900 and kept in the Seghers Collection.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX825
A2 1644]

16

44 The frontispiece of the royal collection
of councils represents the Church fending

off the heresies (symbolized by the turban,
the whip, and the grotesque contortions of

the bodies) with the light of the Holy Spirit.

With her right hand, the Church holds the

keys of Saint Peter. In the upper left corner
are the Church guides to Paradise.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX825
A21644]



THE MANY MEMORIES OF THE
SEGHERS COLLECTION

Just as the name of a later donor is encompassed within a
Seghers title, so too is the provenance of the volumes within
the collection. The larger (and mainly European) tradition
of the Roman Catholic Church is present not only in the
titles and contents of the books, but also through the succes-
sion of owners and users—monasteries, convents, Catholic
schools, and Catholic readers—who left their names, and
often, their annotations, within the ancient books brought
from Europe and America to build the library. One of the

Figure 45

most striking examples of this evidence of use is a volume
composed of indexes of the Bible, complemented with a set
of leather tabs on the fore-edge which forms a set of marks
called a “keyboard” and containing a blank quire for adding
text. Printed by the heirs of the great Antwerp printer Plan-
tin (1520-1589), the book was once the property of a Domin-
ican monk. He, or perhaps another owner, copied in the last
part of the book the preface to another set of indexes [r1Gs.
45 - 48].

Figure 46

Figure 47

45 The concordances of the Bible
(Concordantiae Bibliorum Sacrorum Vulgatae
editionis), published by the heirs of Plantin

in 1617, are a printed revision by Franciscus
Lucas (1549-1619) of the concordances

drawn by Hugh of Saint Cher (1200-1263).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS423 H8]

46 The first title page bears, in ink, a mention
of possession under the form of a drawing: a
unicorn with a quotation from Psalm 35, 8,
“torrente voluptatis tuae potebis eos” [you give
them drink from the river of your delights],

which is the motto of the Dominican Order.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS423 Hs]

47 A quire is added to the printed text of
Lucas’ concordance, and there the reader
copied the preface to the edition of another
concordance authored by Dom Hubertus
Phalesius (1585-1638) from the Benedictine
Order, an Orientalist, subprior, and
historiographer from the Affligem abbey.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS423 H8]

17



Figure 48

Figure 49

Figure 51

Figure 50

Figure 52

Owners and readers of different
generations, centuries, and places meet
in the margins and title pages of these
books. It is not uncommon, for exam-
ple, to see more than one name on a
title page, with later owners erasing or
cutting off the marks, devices, or signa-
tures of earlier owners. It is also fairly
common to find booksellers’ stickers in
the corner of an inside cover [r1Gs. 49 &
s0] competing with the stamps applied
by monastery librarians [Fies. 51 & 52].
These signs are revealing evidence
that a book was initially part of a sem-
inary library; then, probably during
the forced secularization of the French
Revolution, it was extracted from its
place and sold to sellers and collec-
tors ™ before it was finally acquired
by Seghers or other Victoria Catholic
readers. Annotations in the margins,
headers, and footers bear other testi-
monies of ancient readers and their
interpretations. For example, the Latin
Bible published by Overbeke in Lou-
vain (1740) had at least two assiduous
readers: one compares Greek and Lat-
in terms using the Apparatus Biblicus

48 The “keyboard” of leather
tabs, added on the fore-edge.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS423 H8]

49 Sticker applied by a Toulouse
bookseller to this 1608 edition of the Six
Books on Recognizing Magic by Martin
Delrio, first published in Lyons in 1599.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BF1600
B361608]

50 Acquired in Rome at the Libreria di
Luigi de Romanis, as were many other books

18

from the Seghers Collection, this 1598 edition
of Tacitus’ works by Justus Lipsius at the
Plantin presses (Antwerp) is one of the gems
of the Bishop’s library. Probably bought
during Charles Seghers’ sojourn in Rome in
1883, it is a luxurious re-edition of the first
publication, by Lipsius, in Antwerp, 1574.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA6705
A21648]

51 This Parisian edition (Michael
Somnius, 1573) of works by Cyrillus,
Patriarch of Alexandria and theologian

(370-444), belonged to the Jesuit
College of Ferrara (Collegij Ferrariensis
Societatis Jesu Bibliotheca Catalogo).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR65 C92
1573]

52 The Jesuit College of Ferrara had applied
its stamp on the first page of the book.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR65 C92
1573]



compiled by Bernard Lamy (1640-1715)
[e16. 53], while the second makes his ref-
erences explicit by reporting his sourc-
es and drawing parallels at the bottom
of the pages [F1c. 54].

These past residues of readership
and possession are not to be discard-
ed: they are the traces that testify to the
“biography” of these Catholic books
and to the ways they have been con-
sulted, commented on, and preserved
by generations of devout readers [r16.
s5]. The scope of the Seghers Collec-
tion, then, reaches beyond a history of
the first missions and churches of B.C.,
and the vision of its learned bishops
and priests, to embody the collective
definition of Catholicism [f16. 56]. The
memories of these books, as embod-
ied by the congregation of readers and
their ideas, debates, dogmas, and dis-
sents, are thus collected and passed on
through the library, making it both a
collection and a recollection that tran-
scends time and place and immortaliz-
es the history of the Church.

Figure 53

Figure 54

Figure 55 Figure 56

53 This 1740 copy of the Bible, printed

in Louvain by Overbeke, had assiduous
readers. This one compares Greek and
Latin terms using the Apparatus Biblicus
compiled by Bernard Lamy (1640-1715).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS75 1740]]

54 Another reader of the same Bible, though,
wrote within the same book at the bottom of the

pages, making explicit references to other texts.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS75 1740]

55 One reader of the commentaries of Petrus
Serranus (Commentaria in Ezechielem
prophetam, etc., Antwerp: Plantin, 1572)
annotated and underlined heavily the

chapter on sacramental theology.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS1545 $4]

56 The Church is holding a book and a cross:
the religious library, both an assertion of law
and a repository of commentaries, is conceived
as guidance explaining the holy books and
dictating the rules for a Christian life. Paulus
a Conceptione (d. 1726), Tractatus theologici,

Parma: Heirs of Paulus Montus, 1725.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1750
P39 1725]
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The mass of books treating canon law [r16. 57] and Catholic
doctrine attest to this transhistorical dimension of the col-
lection. Defined as “the body of laws and regulations made or
adopted by ecclesiastical authority for the government of the
Christian organization and its members,”* canon law com-
prises all acts, decrees, decisions, and laws from the founda-
tion of the Church up to the time of contemporary readers.

THE DOCTRINE OF THE CHURCH

The Seghers Collection contains at least 163 treatises of can-
on law, 61 collections of papal acts and bullae, and 31 collec-
tions of conciliar acts (decisions of the ecclesiastical councils

Figure 57

Figure 58

determining the orthodox positions) [r1c. 58]. Considered as
the foundation of Christian life and practice, these collec-
tions of ecclesiastical law are often among the most beau-
tifully printed books of the Renaissance. Always becoming
bigger with the passing years and centuries—since noth-
ing could be discarded—these books bear testimony to the
grandeur and authority of the Church, and serve as “second
arks” that could be displayed to all on church lecterns [r16.
59]. After the Council of Trent (1559-63), when the ecumen-
ical assembly gathered to answer the Reformation’s attacks
and specify the doctrine of the Church, these books, being
the ambassadors of Catholic doctrine, attained the summit
of luxury and craftsmanship [F1c. 60].

Figure 59

57 Often printed in large format, and
with two columns of text, the treatises of
canon law fill up many book shelves with
beautiful volumes in the Seghers Collection.

58 The 37 volumes of the royal collection of
councils, Conciliorum onmium generalium,
et provincialium collectio regia (Paris, 1644),

are the largest books of the Seghers Collection.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX825
A21644]
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59 The Roman edition (Presses of the
Vatican, 1732) of Ephrem Syrus’s (303-373)
complete works is a perfect example of the
typographical art developed to celebrate the
Christian message and Christian scholarship.
Ornaments of all kinds (full-page engravings,
banners, title captions, and initials) attest

to the splendour of the Catholic Church.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR65 E55 1732]

60 Martin Antonio Del Rio or Martin
Antoine Delrio (1551, Antwerp -1608, Louvain)
was a Jesuit theologian. He authored,

among other books, the Disquisitionum
magicarum libri sex (Lyons: Pillhotte,
1608). First published in three parts (1599 to
1600), it was reprinted at least twenty times,
making it the second most popular book,
after Malleus Maleficarum, on the occult.
It was last reprinted in 1755 in Cologne.

The lavishly illustrated title page shows the
plagues of Egypt as a theme illustrating the

distinction between prodigies and miracles.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BF1600
B36 1608)
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Figure 62

The collection also contains numerous guides and text-
books developed to classify and complement the mass
of canon law documents and discussions. These become
increasingly complex with the effects of accumulation and
variation over time. The everyday practice of the doctrine
for example, is represented by different kinds of theology,
including practical, dogmatic, and moral. These are deter-
mined by at least 30 treatises of moral theology, 25 trea-
tises of theological ethics, and two dictionaries of cases of

conscience, all intended to help the believer in his or her
decisions [r16. 61]. Works of synthesis, such as annals, alma-
nacs, and summaries (notably by Baronius) [F1c. 62], are rep-
resented by more than one copy for each title. On a more
abstract level, the collection includes works by all of the
major theologians of note; that is, those accepted as “ortho-
dox” by the official doctrine of the Church. Most notably,
the collection has more than 37 editions of Thomas Aqui-
nas’ works. Aquinas was declared the official Catholic

61 The Viridarium sacre, et profanae
eruditionis (Garden of sacred and profane
erudition), compiled by Francisco de
Mendoza (1573-1626) and published in Lyons
(Anisson, 1649), illustrates the harmony
between sacred knowledge and mundane
life. A copious index allows the reader to

find answers to all kinds of questions.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers AC14 M4 1649]

62 This huge volume contains the abridgement
by Henry de Sponde (1568-1643) of the

twelve books of the Annals of the Church,
written by Cesare Baronio (1538-1607) and
published in Mannheim in 1618 (Annales

ecclesiastici: ex XII tomis Ceesaris Baronii /
opera Henrici Spondani). This copy belonged
to Joseph Leterme. There are six editions

of this title in the Seghers Collection.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR143 B38]
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Figure 63

theoretician in 1893 [r16. 63] and Thom-
ism was then recognized as the official
philosophy of the Catholic Church.
Commentaries on the various works
by Thomas Aquinas are even more
numerous [r1c. 64]. Books on exegesis,
the interpretation of the scriptures, are
very well represented, offering some
of the most spectacular examples of
book art from the Counter-Reforma-
tion. Here, titles with ornate compart-
ments [r1c. 65] and frontispieces [F1c. 66]
speak to the high level of typographi-
cal sophistication put in service to the
Roman Catholic doctrine [F16. 67].
These ancient books, the majority in
Latin, with at least 42 published before
1600, 164 before 1700, 334 before 1800,
and 1107 before 1900, comprise the
“definition” of the library: “a reposito-
ry, which serves as guidance and prac-
tice.”™ As such, their age is regarded by
the Church not as a mark of irrelevance,
but as the guarantee of a sound message.

Figure 64

63 This copy of Aquinas’ Sum of Theology,
printed with commentaries in Lyons (Anisson,
1680-1686), was owned by Charles Seghers.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1749
T48 1685]
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64 Franciscus Sylvius® (1581-1649) commentary
on Thomas of Aquinas’ Summa Theologiae

is arranged according to parts of the original
work. The Seghers Collection includes eight
editions (the most recent published in 1869) of
this work. The version here was published by

Patté in Douai, 1645, and catalogued in Ottawa

by the librarians of Saint Paul Seminary.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 12” BX1749
T65953 1645 ]



Figure 65

Figure 66

65 Magalhdes Cosmé (1553-1624),
Commentaries in the Story of Josuah
(Cosmae Magaliani ... In sacram Josue
historiam commentariorum tomi duo,
Tournon: Cardon, 1612). Episodes of the Old
Testament surround the title, and Biblical
scenes are represented as commentaries to
passages of the story of Josuah. At the top
middle of the page is the symbol for the Jesuit
Order, with rays coming from the letters
IHS, the Greek monogram of Jesus Christ

Our Saviour (Iesous Christos Soterios).
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS1295 M3]

66 The complete works of the Jesuit scholar
Jeremias Drexel (1581-1638), printed in
Antwerp (heirs of . Cnobarrus, 1660), provide
a detailed exegesis of the scriptures, which are
searchable through a series of indexes. The
title page shows the crowning of the Church
over the title. Angels and cherubs illustrate the

qualities of the book (abundance and morality).

This copy belonged to Joannes de Clerq.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1750
D7 1660]

67 The treatise on Respective Powers of the
State and the Church, written by Pierre de
Marca (1594-1662) and printed by Muguet
in Paris (1663), exemplifies the aesthetic

of French Counter-Reformation Catholic
books. Printed in two colours, which display
the skills of a perfect superimposition of

the second colour onto the first, the title

lists all the credentials of the author.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1529
M29]
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Figure 68

BOOKS OF WORSHIP

As a diocese library, the Seghers Col-
lection counts among its most beau-
tiful holdings books of worship from
St. Andrew’s Cathedral, including 55
Bibles, 32 missals, 23 hymnals, and 18
breviaries, as well as musical scores
and various books of devotion and
pious meditation—which were never
discarded but exchanged regularly for
newer versions [Fies. 68 & 69]. Togeth-
er these offer a vivid picture of St.
Andrews during its first century and
form a museum of Catholic life in Vic-
toria, where the books’ beautiful bind-
ings and ornate decorations illustrate a

Figure 69

68 This Roman Catholic missal, printed in
1921 by Mame in Tours, is the updated version
of the Catholic missal, successively approved
by Popes Pius V, Pius X, and Benedict XV.
The title reminds the user of the legitimacy of
this book for the liturgy: Missale Romanum
ex decreto Sacrosancti Concilii Tridentini

restitutum / S. Pii V Pontificis Maximi

jussu editum aliorum Pontificum cura
recognitum, a Pio X reformatum et Ssmi

D. N. Benedicti XV auctoritate vulgatum.
Splendidly bound, this missal is one of 117
liturgical books held in the Seghers Collection.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX 2015
A21921]

69 This elaborate set of bookmarks
allows for several pages to be easily

accessible for readings.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX 2015
A21921]
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universal language of the Church, and which was expected
to be so eternally. It is a tragic irony that the language that
was employed to ensure posterity and readership is now one

living memory of the priests and worshippers at daily prayer
[F1G. 70].
An overwhelming proportion of the Seghers books

are written in Latin, which was then the official and

Figure 70

Figure 71

of the main obstacles to use of the collection [16. 71].

70 This Bible, whose title explicitly mentions
Catholic orthodoxy (The Holy Bible: The
Approved Holy Catholic Bible Containing the
Entire Canonical Scriptures, According to the
Decree of the Council of Trent, Translated
from the Latin Vulgate), was printed in 1888
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and is bound into a work of art. This copy
may have been for display in the cathedral.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS180
1888 P45]

71 Latinitas (Latinity) is represented as
an allegory on the frontispiece of the

medieval Latin dictionary by Du Cange
(Frankfurt: Zunner, 1681). The landscape
shows the collapse of the Roman Empire

and the despair of Latin correctness.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA2888
D8 1681]



A POLYGLOT LIBRARY

The following table gives an idea of the groupings by lan-
guage in this polyglot, supranational library:

Language = Number of titles ~ Date range of publication

Latin 643 1546-1963
English 490 1733-1999
French 243 1647-1972
German 93 1812-1912
Greek 22 +7 1637-1877
ITtalian 12 1680-1889
Dutch 10 1852-1944

Comprised largely of books in Latin, the collection
demonstrates an interest in Biblical languages (includ-
ing both Greek and Latin, but also Aramaic and Hebrew,
although very few books are in these latter languages) and
reflects the strong influence of Quebec, France, and Franco-
phone Belgium in the foundation of the Church worldwide,
not only through publications and journals, but also in the
composition of nineteenth-century British Columbia Catho-
lic settlements. It also attests to the lasting links uniting the
development of Catholicism on Vancouver Island with the
American College in Louvain, since the titles assembled for
the Victoria readership resemble not only those kept in the
college’s Seminary Library, but also those of the Louvain
libraries (the most ancient and illustrious being the library
of the Trilingual College, founded in 1517 for the develop-
ment of Greek, Latin, and Hebrew studies) [F16. 72]. Only one
book in English predates 1800, and the majority of English
acquisitions are more recent than the core of the collection.

More than 47 language dictionaries, including two copies
of Du Cange’s monumental seventeenth-century dictionary
of medieval Latin, supplement this learned collection [r16.
73]. The popular Latin-French dictionary composed by the
Father Noél counts seven copies, several being signed by
their individual owners [r16. 74]. Dictionaries of German,
Russian, and French complete the collection and remind the

Figure 72

Figure 73

Figure 74

72 This Latin Bible edited by Jean-Baptiste
Duhamel (1624-1705) was printed in
Louvain by Overbeke in 1740. A scientific
and critical edition of the Latin translation
used by the Catholic Church, it attests to

the lively tradition of Biblical studies in
Louvain. The printer’s device shows the open
Bible, presented as an ark. A pious image
found at the beginning of the Prophecies of
Habacuc, bears the name of Charles Seghers,
attesting he was perusing this Louvain

version. See page viii of this publication.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS75 1740]

73 The Seghers Collection counts two copies
of this medieval Latin dictionary compiled by

Charles Du Fresne, Sieur du Cange (1610-1688),

also known as the Glossarium ad scriptores
mediae et infimae latinitatis. This copy
was printed in Frankfurt (Zunner, 1681).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA2888
D8 1681]

74 Dictionaire latin-frangais, composed by
Frangois Noél (1755-1841), was the standard
reference lexicon for French-speaking
students of Latin in France and Belgium. This
copy, published in Brussels by the Société
nationale pour la propagation des bons

livres in 1862, belonged to Jean Lemmens,

who signed his name on the first page.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA 2365
F5N6 1862]
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Figure 75

reader of the missionary nature of the library, since Victoria
itself was multilingual.

One language, however, is conspicuously missing from
these collections of lexica, dictionaries, and grammars:
Chinook, the very language of communication between
the First Nations and the Catholic missionaries. As early as
1839, Modeste Demers (1809-1877) had written a Chinook
dictionary with catechism and prayers. But there is no Chi-
nook dictionary in the Seghers Collection. There are also no
maps nor any general description of British Columbia and
the northern Pacific Coast.

How to understand this remarkable lack of Pacific
Northwest content? First, these books may have been dis-
placed during one of the collection’s numerous moves. They
could have been left behind in 1925, at the time of the first
inventory on the occasion of the first displacement of the
books; in 1946, when the collection was sent to Ottawa; in
1964, when the books were returned to Victoria; or perhaps
in 1976, when the books were finally moved to the Univer-
sity of Victoria. Alternatively, they may have been kept in
a different library, one focused on more pragmatic matters
such as first aid, geography, or local history and customs,
and stored separately from the diocese collection, which was
centred on “eternal” topics. The presence of Demers’ works
and other priests’ notebooks on Coastal Salish languages in

the diocesan archives tend to corroborate this latter hypoth-
esis. This absence, though, demonstrates the exclusively
European focus of the collection. From the perspective of
B.C. historians, this is a significant loss.

A LIBRARY IN THE STYLE
OF LOUVAIN?

The distribution of books according to the place of publica-
tion shows a similar pattern. French and Catholic presses
form the majority of centres of publication, with an empha-
sis on Flanders and the Low Countries, the region of origin
for Seghers and many other priests.

Place of Publication Number of titles
France 973
Paris 739
Lyons 63
Belgium 136
Louvain 39
Mechelen/Malines 36
Brussels 24
Quebec 15
Montreal 24
Italy 240
Rome 33
Venice 93
Brescia 5

Indeed, the campaign of recruitment by the American
College in Louvain (Belgium) for the missions of Canada’s
West Coast was mutually beneficial for both parties, as is
shown by Kevin Codd.® Fully four of Victoria’s early bish-
ops were trained at the American College: Seghers, who
served from 1873-1879 and 1884-1886; Brondel, from 1879-
1883; Lemmens, from 1888-1898; and Orth, from 1900-1909.
The list drawn by Codd of former pupils of the college sent to
Vancouver Island also includes many of the priests who have
served the Island: Jonckau, Brabant, Leroy, Conrardy, La
Nicolaye, and Leterme. As noted earlier, Modeste Demers,
first bishop of Victoria, supported the American College at
its foundation in 1857. An 1867 pamphlet kept at the college
in Louvain tells how Modeste Demers wished to develop
and maintain these links.*¥ In less than 50 years, the Amer-
ican College sent 24 missionaries to the West Coast [r16. 75].

In many ways, these missionaries from Louvain brought
with them their idea of what a library should look like: many

75 The front gate of the American College in Louvain, Belgium. Photograph by Jan Just Witkam, September 2012.
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of the titles collected by Seghers and his successors are in
the library of the Catholic University of Louvain, where
they had studied. Notably, the Seghers Collection holds gifts
made to Joseph Leterme by his superiors and masters when
he was still a student. Already ancient at the time of their
donation, these books mix the memories of generations of
knowledge. But this continuity is another form of tradition
and another example of Catholic legacy, since libraries trav-
el with missions.

The scholarly series Patrologia Latina, published under
the name of Jacques-Paul Migne between 1844 and 1855,
and their accompanying four volumes of indexes published
between 1862 and 1865 (217 volumes, in total), are a compre-
hensive collection of the Latin writings of Church Fathers
and theologians throughout the centuries, covering the
history of theology from Tertullian in the third century to
Innocent III ten centuries later. Two complete sets of this
impressive series attest to the scholarly ambitions of the col-
lection [F16. 76] to comprise all noteworthy works of Catho-
lic theology. A textbook for theologians and seminarians,
the Patrologia Latina is now a primary source of reference
for historians, Latinists, church archivists, and many other
scholars. Because of its importance for humanities disci-
plines, an electronic version created of the first edition was
one of the first and largest electronically searchable collec-
tions of texts to be compiled and made accessible to scholars,

Figure 76

in 1996. It was purchased by University of Victoria Libraries
and can now be consulted online as one of UVic’s thirteen
Medieval Studies databases. i

THE WOLF IN THE FOLD

By definition, most of the books comprising the Seghers
Collection and embodying the Catholic tradition would
have received the approbation of ecclesiastical authorities
before publication and circulation [r16. 77]. Two versions of
the Index Librorum Prohibitorum, a list of forbidden books
issued by the Vatican, are included in the catalogue. Works
by two famous theologians of the Counter-Reformation at
the end of the sixteenth century—Martin Delrio, known
as a theoretician of witchcraft, magic, and the occult, and
Cardinal Inquisitor Robert Bellarmine, judge of the heretic
Giordano Bruno (1548-1600)—were also collected.**
However, a closer look behind the stamp of orthodoxy
reveals some surprising inclusions in this collection. Defy-
ing the orthodox Catholic collecting principle, ancient
books beget more ancient books, and Latin culture begets
classical culture, secular and, quite often non-Christian. For
this reason, there are a number of editions of the classics
published by “forbidden” Reformation printers to be found
in the Seghers Collection. Notably, the complete works by

Figure 77

76 Well bound and well-kept, the nineteenth-
century scholarly series of the Patrologia Latina

Bellarmini Politiani e Societate Iesu S.R.E.
Cardinalis de controversiis Christianae

that the position of the author has been
approved by the official readers of the Church.

are the modern face of the Seghers books.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR60 M35]

77 Just before the text of Controversies
against Heretics (Disputationum Roberti

fidei adversus huius temporis haereticos) by
Roberto Bellarmino (1542-1621), the “Printed
Approbation by the Superiors” (an official text
quoted at the beginning of the book) ensures

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1750
B4 1628]
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the Latin author Suetonius, published by Froben, the con-
demned editor of the “heretic” Erasmus, seem somehow
out of place [r16. 78]. So does the inclusion of an edition of
Diodorus Siculus’ works,™ in the version by Henri Estienne
(1530-1598), an editor and publisher explicitly condemned
and forbidden [r16. 79].

Even more spectacular is the case of the edition by Hier-
onymus Wolf, a German scholar and humanist who was a
specialist in Byzantine culture and language. His version of
the Suida, an encyclopedia of Byzantine knowledge named
after a fictitious author, is mentioned in the index of for-
bidden books. A sticker warns the reader of the dangerous
nature of the text, and numerous ink erasures have often
rendered the name of the editor and commentator illegible.
And still, the wolf is in the fold! [f1e. 80].

Figure 78

Figure 79

78 These Vitae Ceesarum (Lives of the
Caesars) by Suetonius and other authors
were published in Basel by Froben in 1546.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers DG271 V5 ]

79 If only for the intellectual property
of the scientific edition of the Greek text,
this publication of Diodorus Siculus's
works (Basel: H. Petri, 1559) is formally
forbidden, for the book quotes the Greek
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text in the version established earlier

by Henri Estienne (1530-1598), who was
explicitly banished from Catholic libraries
by the Index of Forbidden Books.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers DG271 V5
PA3965 D4A5 1559]

80 This edition published by Hervagius
(Basel, 1581) of the Byzantine encyclopedia
known as the Suida is due to the work of

Hieronymus Wolf (1516-1580), a humanist
explicitly condemned by the Index of
Forbidden Books. Rather than banishing the
whole book, the Catholic owners of the volume

banished the name of its scientific editor.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA5365
A751581]



Figure 80

33



Figure 81 Figure 82

A similar paradox is to be observed concerning the edi-
tion of Jansenius’ Commentaries. These texts were forbidden,
as a sticker reminds the reader in each volume of the series.
Nevertheless, the work is kept in the collection [F1c. 81].

The Index Librorum Prohibitorum was formally abol-
ished in 1966 by Pope Paul V1. This reform is also part of the
changing nature of ecclesiastical law and is reflected in the
most recent donation of books by Remi De Roo. For part of
the tradition is change, and the acceptance of new worlds.

TRADITION AND TRANSFORMATION

Founded by a romantic and talented missionary at the end
of the nineteenth century [r16. 82] and continued in his

multisecular Catholic tradition, the personal memories of a
European youth, and a first education at the American Col-
lege in Louvain with the establishment of Christian settlers
in the Pacific Northwest, as well as subsequent generations
of Catholic readers and book lovers. In 2013, it is now a major
part of Special Collections at the University of Victoria
Libraries.

In the next chapter of its history, the Seghers Collec-
tion will provide boundless exploration for new readers,
researchers, and users: students, medievalists, Renaissance
scholars, art historians, rare book specialists, archivists, and
librarians. Together, they will join the ranks of theologi-
ans, members of the clergy, and classical scholars who form
the history of the collection’s readership. Today and in the
future, these books bear the promise of new worlds, where

name and spirit, the Seghers Collection intertwines the tradition and transformation may be reconciled [r16.83]. [ 1

81 This sticker, applied to the commentaries
to the first five books of the Bible by

Cornelius Jansenius (1585-1638), warns the
reader that the content of the book is not
approved by the Church authorities. A special

dispensation is required for reading it.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers 15” BS 505
C741695 ]

82 In the pages of this edition of Thomas
of Aquinas’ Summa, published in Antwerp
(Plantin, 1585), one can find as a bookmark a
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piece of paper from a book sale catalogue in
1886. Was this the catalogue used for Seghers’
last acquisition? The book illustrates the
many layers of memories of the collection,
linking the Flanders of Antwerp, the country
of Seghers’ home, with the Catholic tradition
of Thomism and the building of the library.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BX1749
T48 1585]

83 In this printer’s device for the Dictionary
of Moral Repertory by Pierre Bersuire
(1290-1362), published in Venice (1575,
Hieronymus Scotus), an allegory, seated

on the universe and its zodiacal signs,

promises the coming of peace with virtue.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BS440
B4 1574]
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~> The Spirit searches all things

[1 Corinthians 2, 10: Spiritus omnia
scrutatur], the motto chosen by the Lovanese
printer Martin Hullegaerde on the title-
page of his edition of Cornelius Jansenius’s
Pentateuchus, Sive Commentarious in

quinque libros Moysis (Louvain, 1685).
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: BS1225 J3 1685]



Notes

iii.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Such is the literal meaning of the adjective “catholic™
universal, encompassing all times, places, and people.

See, for instance, the nostalgic letter sent by Charles Seghers

to the Sisters of St. Ann, from Portland, dated March 12, 1880,
kept in the Archives of the Sisters of St. Ann, Box S 19/09 ...
Mes souvenirs me transportent bien des fois en esprit sur I'Ile
de Vancouver; et je pense, non sans émotion, & mes Indiens...”
Speech given by Norbert Blanchet in Portland’s cathedral

for the reception of Charles Seghers: “My Lord Archbishop
Coadjutor: This day of your reception in this cathedral as my
coadjutor and future successor is the happiest day of my life.”
See Edwin V. O’Hara, Pioneer Catholic History of Oregon
(Portland, Oregon: Glass and Prudhomme Company, 1911), 219.
Much has been written on this tragic event, which has been
considered as a case of martyrdom by more than one Catholic
biographer. See, for instance, i) Sketch of the Alaskan Missions,
with an Account of the Death of the Late Most Rev. Charles J.
Seghers, Archbishop of Vancouver Island, B.C. (Spokane Falls,
Wash.: Gonzaga College, 1887); ii) Maurice de Baets, Mgr
Seghers, lapétre de I’Alaska (Paris-Gent: Siffer, 1896), translated
by Mildred N. Paterson as The Apostle of Alaska: Life of the Most
Reverend Charles John Seghers; iii) Gerard G. Steckler, Charles
John Seghers: Priest and Bishop in the Pacific Northwest 1839-1886:
A Biography (Fairfield, Wash.: Ye Galleon Press, 1986); and iv)
“The Case of Frank Fuller: The Killer of Alaska Missionary
Charles Seghers,” Pacific Northwest Quarterly 58: 98-103.
Maurice de Baets, Mgr Seghers, ’Apotre de I’Alaska (Paris-
Gent: Siffer, 1896), xxv: “Un évéque sans livres est un soldat
sans armes.” This sentence is a quotation from Augustine’s De
Doctrina Christiana (Book 1v). See also C. Freeman, The Closing
of the Western Mind (New York: Knopf, 2003), 295: “Words
should be our instruments, arguments our weapons...”

De Baets, Mgr Seghers, lapétre de I’Alaska, 88: “Pendant ses
longues pérégrinations, ses livres étaient ses compagnons fidéles
et inséparables et ¢’était en canot, en traineau, a cheval que cet
homme avide de savoir faisait ses méditations philosophiques.”
De Baets, Mgr Seghers, l'apotre de I’Alaska,

xxV: “Soignez la bibliothéque.”

De Roo’s personal copy of the Vatican 11 proceedings

was a later donation to the University of Victoria,

now kept with the Seghers Collection.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

xviii.

Xix.

XX.

This seminary became Saint Paul University in 1965.

The Seghers Memorial Library was dismantled in 2011.

Most of its holdings are now in the Douglas College

Library in New Westminster, British Columbia.

Thus, at least two libraries in Victoria bear the name of
Seghers: The Seghers Library, comprising the diocese
collections, and the Seghers Memorial Library, founded

in 1967 and held until 2011 at the Queenswood centre.

See Dominique Varry, Histoire des bibliothéques frangaises,
tome 111, Les bibliothéques de la Révolution et du x1x° siécle
1789-1914 (Paris: Promodis-Cercle de la librairie, 1991).
Charles George Hebermann [dir.], “Canon Law,” in The
Catholic Encyclopedia, vol. 1x (New York: Appleton, 1913), 56.
These numbers do not take into account books for

which the date of publication is unspecified.

Guy Sylvestre, Guidelines for National

Libraries. (Paris: UNESCO, 1987), 1.

Kevin A. Codd, A Favored Portion of the Vineyard: A Study

of the American College Missionaries on the North Pacific

Coast, 1857-1907 (Katholieke Universiteit Leuven, Faculty

of Theology, 2005). See also “The American College of
Louvain,” The Catholic Historical Review, 93:1, 47-83.

Notice sur I’établissement de la province ecclésiastique de
I’Orégon, précédée de quelques renseignements sur le Canada
(pamphlet), 1867. Archive of the American College, Louvain.
See for the Patrologia Latina the database located at http://
pld.chadwyck.com.ezproxy.library.uvic.ca/. The Patrologia
Greca, a collection of texts written in Greek by the Church
Fathers (from all over the Eastern Roman Empire) is accessible
at http://pld.chadwyck.com.ezproxy.library.uvic.ca/.

Giordano Bruno was an Italian Dominican friar, philosopher,
mathematician, and astronomer, among other possible
denominations for his versatile activities. A Renaissance man in
the true sense of the word, he was found guilty of heresy by the
Roman Inquisition and burned at the stake with his books. The
main charges held against him were those of blasphemy, immoral
conduct, belief in the plurality of worlds, and heresy regarding
the dogma of the Trinity. Cardinal Bellarmine asked him for

a total recantation, which he refused, before his execution.
Published in 1559 in Basel by Henri Petri.
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Further Readings at

University of Victoria Libraries

Maurice de Baets. Mgr Seghers, l'apétre de
I’Alaska [microform)]. Paris: H. Oudin, 1896.
UVIC LIBRARIES CIHM NO. 00899

Maurice de Baets. The Apostle of Alaska: Life of the
Most Reverend Charles John Seghers. Translation by
Sister Mary Mildred with a foreword by the Most
Reverend John C. Cody, Bishop of Victoria, BC.
Paterson, NJ: St. Anthony Guild Press, 1943.

UVIC LIBRARIES BX4705 $52B213

Francois Norbert Blanchet. Historical Sketches
of the Catholic Church in Oregon During the Past
Forty Years [microform]. Portland, OR: 1878.
UVIC LIBRARIES CIHM NO. 05538

Margaret Cantwell, in collaboration with Mary George
Edmond. North to Share: The Sisters of Saint Ann in
Alaska and the Yukon Territory. Foreword by Walter

J. Hickel. Victoria, BC: Sisters of St. Ann, 1992.

UVIC LIBRARIES BX4486.4 Z5U63

Joseph Raphael Crimont. Sketch of the Martyrdom of

Archbishop Charles John Seghers. Victoria, BC: 1943.
UVIC LIBRARIES BX4705 S52C75
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Edwin V. O’Hara. Pioneer Catholic History of Oregon.
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~ The symbol of wisdom, serving

as the printer’s device on the Parisian
edition of Gregory of Naziance’s works
(Paris: Jacques de Billy, 1569).

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR65 G86 1569]
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~> Detail of the printer’s device of Plantin with
the compass and motto Labore et Constantia

(through work and perseverance). See figure 37.
[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers PA6068 D34]
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~> Serving as a research and teaching resource for students,
faculty, community members, and researchers from around the
world, the University of Victoria Libraries” Special Collections has
a mandate to collect, preserve, and make accessible rare books,
manuscripts, archives and other materials. Once reserved for the
elite of the Catholic Church and authorized readers, the 4,000
volumes of the Seghers Collection are now freely accessible to both

the academic community and the world through UVic Libraries.
Photo by John Frederick, University of Victoria Libraries



~ A typographical ornament excerpted
from Ephrem Syrus’s Complete Works (Rome:
Presses of the Vatican, 1732). See figure 59.

[University of Victoria Libraries Special Collections: Seghers BR65 E55 1732]
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